
 

Borough of Telford and Wrekin 

Communities Scrutiny Committee 

Tuesday, 28 June 2022 

6.00 pm 

Addenbrooke House, Ironmasters Way, Telford, TF3 4NT 

   

 

Democratic Services: 

 

Sam Yarnall 01952 382193 

Media Enquiries: 

 

Corporate Communications 01952 382406 

 

Committee Members: 

 

Councillors S Bentley, E J Carter, V J Holt, T L B Janke, 

J Loveridge, B J Thompson and C R Turley (Chair) 

  

 
 Agenda Page 

 
1.0   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2.0   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3.0   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 

(Pages 3 
- 8) 

4.0   Terms of Reference 2022/2023 
 
To approve the Committee’s Terms of Reference for the municipal year 2022 
to 2023. 
 

(Pages 9 
- 16) 

5.0   Work Programme 2022/2023 
 
To agree the Committee’s work programme for the municipal year 2022 to 
2023. 
 

(Pages 
17 - 18) 

6.0   Highways Update 
 

(To 
Follow) 

7.0   Chair's Update 
 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Communities Scrutiny Committee held on 
Tuesday, 12 April 2022 at 6.00 pm in Addenbrooke House, Ironmasters 

Way, Telford, TF3 4NT 
 

 
Present: Councillors S Bentley, E J Carter, V J Holt, T L B Janke, 
C R Turley (Chair) and D Wright 
 
In Attendance: A Astley (Executive Director: Housing, Communities & 
Customer Services), H Bolton (Strategic Transport Team Leader), L Gordon 
(Democracy Officer (Scrutiny)), A Lowe (Director: Policy & Governance), M 
Powell (Service Delivery Manager: Strategic Transport & Highway Network, 
Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services), D Sargeant (Director - 
Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services), -, and S Yarnall (Democracy Officer 
(Scrutiny)). 
 
COMSC41 Apologies for Absence 
 
Councillor B J Thompson. 
 
COMSC42 Declarations of Interest 
 
None. 
 
COMSC43 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 15 February 2022 
be confirmed and signed by the chair. 
 
COMSC44 Travel Strategy - Electric Vehicles 
 
The Committee invited the Service Delivery Manager: Strategic Transport & 
Highway Network, Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services and Strategic 
Transport Team Leader to update the committee on the council’s Electric 
Vehicle (EV) Strategy.  
  
The Service Delivery Manager: Strategic Transport & Highway Network, 
Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services provided a background to the 
council’s EV strategy. It was explained that the first EV strategy was adopted 
in 2018 when the benefits of EVs were recognised and the requirement for 
charging infrastructure was outlined. Members heard that in June 2019, the 
UK Government had announced ambitions to achieve net zero by 2050. 
Following that in November 2020, the target was set to ban the sale of new 
petrol and diesel cars by 2030. It was said that, in July 2019, the council 
declared a climate emergency and are committed to ensuring that the 
authority is carbon neutral by 2030.  
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

The Strategic Transport Team Leader provided an update to the committee 
regarding the current situation of EVs in the Borough. It was explained that, 
since 2018, the number of locations of public EV chargepoints have almost 
doubled from 11 to 21, and a further three more were planned. It was 
explained that this would provide 42 public charging devices in the Borough. 
Members heard that there was a number of different types of charging points 
that were available to people in the Borough. This ranged from slow charging 
points to residential charging points. It was noted that the Zap-map website 
was the recommended source for people to find out about the local charging 
points. It was also reported that 599 residents have installed an EV 
chargepoint through the EV Homecharge scheme (EVHS). An additional 51 
sockets had been installed through the Workplace Charging Scheme (WCS) 
at the time of the meeting. Members were informed that grant funding for zero 
emission vehicles would be changing this year and that some of the changes 
could include funding for landlords, flats and apartment development to have 
EV chargingpoints.  
  
Members heard that the number of ultra-low emission vehicles that were 
registered in the Borough at the end of 2017 was 164 and by the third quarter 
in 2021 the figure was recorded as 1,310. This reflected an increase of 699% 
in comparison to the figure quoted in 2017. It was said that this is still less 
than 1% of all registered vehicles in the Borough.  
  
Following the update of the number of EV's the members were shown 
information regarding the numbers of licensed plug-in cars, vans and 
quadricycles that were registered in Telford & Wrekin. The data was from the 
Department For Transport vehicle licensing statistics to date. It was explained 
to Members that since 2018 there has been a sharp increase in EV's to date. 
One of the reasons that was used to explain this trend was linked to 
government funding. It was said, however, that in comparison to petrol and 
diesel cars, EV's are still expensive to purchase.  
  
The Service Delivery Manager: Strategic Transport & Highway Network, 
Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services then discussed the Council’s EVs. At 
the time of the meeting there were 6 Council EVs, with an additional 7 EVs 
expected for April 2022. Members heard that there are 10 chargepoints at 
Granville House and in the Southwater Multi-storey for Council Vehicles. It 
was noted that there were an additional 6 chargepoints for IdVerde and 
Balfour Beatty EV's. The council still have 30 diesel vans and the policy will 
encourage teams to change these to EV at end of life if not before. It was 
explained that some of the reason for having these remaining diesel vehicles 
was down to logistics and practicality. The Service Delivery Manager: 
Strategic Transport & Highway Network, Neighbourhood & Enforcement 
Services cited the use of mini-buses which were used to look at the logistics 
of elements like seating to usage, usage and range that EV equivalents could 
have. It was said that the current focus was on replacing the older vehicles 
with ones that produced less pollution. Members heard that the authority are 
working with external partners like Arriva to see if EV could be applied to 
public transportation.  
  

Page 4



 

 

In the Summer of 2021, a strategy review was started that consists of three 
elements: Public EV Charging Strategy & Toolkit; Council EV Charging 
Strategy & Toolkit; and Funding, procurement and delivery of EV 
Chargepoints. Members heard that, at the time of the meeting, reviews had 
been completed on Policy & funding; Technology & Markets; Commercial 
models; and, Demand analysis. It was noted that the draft strategy recognised 
that while the Council can take responsibility for chargepoint installation in its 
car parks or on-streets, support was needed from residents, workplaces, retail 
and leisure destinations to install chargepoints. It was said that partnerships 
would be key to help with funding the chargepoints. Members heard that the 
team are taking an evidence based approach and discussions with suppliers 
regarding funding were ongoing. 
  
The Service Delivery Manager: Strategic Transport & Highway Network, 
Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services reported to the committee that the 
team are currently reviewing draft EV strategies and toolkits with the hope to 
present them to Cabinet in Summer 2022. Members also heard that the 
process of procurement has started, as well as exploring funding opportunities 
with a view to procure an operator to install and maintain EV chargepoints 
later in 2022. 
  
After the presentation Members asked questions: 
  
Was there scope to look at using carparks that are heavily used like the 
Southwater carpark for EV chargepoints for members of the public to use? 
 
The Service Delivery Manager: Strategic Transport & Highway Network, 
Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services explained that they need to work with 
suppliers of privately owned car parks in order to install chargepoints. 
Members heard that they are looking at the Council owned car parks such as 
Hall Court car park and Southwater Multi-storey to provide EV chargepoints. It 
was noted that their demand analysis showed that these car parks are to be 
looked at for public EV chargepoints. Southwater is already used for the 
council's EV fleets. 
  
Was there a possibility to work in partnership with tourist organisations to 
encourage tourists to use the EV chargepoints? 
 
Members heard that this is a possibility and that this could be looked at as a 
partnership avenue. 
  
Were there plans in place for residential areas with limited or on-street 
parking?  
 
Members heard that as part of the analysis and planning for EV points, types 
of roads and areas are to be considered before the installation of EV 
chargepoints. It was said that further information and analysis needed to be 
explored and that this was ongoing due to ever evolving technology.  
  

Page 5



 

 

Were we looking at the engagement with social housing and planning 
arrangements to accommodate EV chargepoints? 
 
Members heard that new planning laws will be coming into effect later this 
year, requiring all new homes and new non-residential buildings to have an 
EV chargepoint installed. It was noted that existing new residential 
developments like Station Road, Newport are already starting to include EV 
chargepoints in new homes. 50% of the houses on the Station Road site will 
be fitted with an EV chargepoint. This requirement won’t apply to existing 
builds although they were able to apply for grants from Office of Zero 
Emission Vehicles for installing EV chargepoints.  
 
Did the data regarding the number of EVs in the Borough include those that 
were leased and was there a way of putting the Zap Map data on the website 
for residents and visitors? 
 
The Strategic Transport Team Leader explained that the data regarding the 
number of EVs in the Borough is provided by the DVLA, and that the figures 
include all of the registered vehicles in the Borough so those leased but 
registered outside of the Borough would not be included in these figures. 
Incorporating Zap Map data on the website could be considered. 
  
Was there anything that the Council could implement or fund, prior to 
Government implementation of initiatives?  
 
The Director: Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services replied that the team 
would take comments back from the Committee and use them to plan the next 
stages of the strategy. It was highlighted that this included the gaps in 
infrastructure and other areas that could be utilised for chargepoints. This 
information was to be used as part of the demand analysis to further plan the 
strategy. The committee heard that alongside this the team were exploring 
working with partners to provide the best possible service to the Borough. 
 
Following the discussion it was RESOLVED that – 
 
 

a. The Communities Scrutiny Committee notes the approach taken 
with the Electric Vehicle Strategy, progress made to date as 
outlined in this report and offer areas for further review. 

b. Notes the role of the Council in developing/delivering this 
infrastructure alongside the role the market has. 

c. Notes the current plans to replace council operated vehicles with 
EV’s as they reach the end of their contracted period. 

 
COMSC45 Work Programme Review 
 
The Director: Policy & Governance provided Members with a summary of 
what the Committee has scrutinised over the last municipal year. Members 
also heard about the outstanding items that are on the work programme and 

Page 6



 

 

that they could be carried over to the next municipal year considering that this 
meeting was the last of the 2021/22 municipal year.  
 
It was noted that the Work Programming process for the next municipal year 
was already underway and that they will be updated accordingly following 
Scrutiny Management Board. 
 
COMSC46 Chair's Update 
 
The Chair thanked members and officers for attending the meeting.  
 
The meeting ended at 6.36 pm 

 
Chairman:   

 
Date: 

 
Date Not Specified 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Borough of Telford and Wrekin 

Communities Scrutiny Committee 

28 June 2022 

Terms of Reference 2022/23 

 
 
Cabinet Member: Cllr Rae Evan. Cabinet Member: Finance, Governance and 

Customer Services 

Lead Director:  Anthea Lowe – Director: Policy & Governance 

Service Area:  Democracy 

Report Author:  Sam Yarnall (Democracy Officer (Scrutiny)) 

Officer Contact 
Details:   Tel:  01952 382193   Email: sam.yarnall@telford.gov.uk 
 
Wards Affected:  None. 

Key Decision:  No 

Forward Plan:  Not applicable 

Report considered by: Communities Scrutiny Committee - 28 June 2022 

 
 
1.0 Recommendations for decision/noting: 

It is recommended that the Communities Scrutiny Committee:- 
 

1.1  Review and agree the amended Terms of Reference set out at Appendix 1. 
 

 

2.0 Purpose of Report 

2.1 To set out the Terms of References for the Communities Scrutiny Committee as 
outlined in Appendix A. 
 

 
3.0 Background 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

mailto:sam.yarnall@telford.gov.uk


Appendix A 

 

2 

 

3.1 The Constitution requires that Full Council should agree at its Annual Meeting the 
Terms of Reference for each of its Committees to enable the Council to efficiently 
conduct its business. 

 
3.2  At the Annual Meeting of the Council on 19 May 2022, Full Council delegated 

authority to each Committee to review its own Terms of Reference. 
 
3.3 The Terms of Reference forms part of the Constitution and was approved by Full 

Council in that context on 3 March 2022. 
 
3.4 There is one minor change suggested to the Terms of Reference (shown in red on 

Appendix 1) to provide clarity around the process for appointment of a Chair for 
the Committee. It notes that the Chair is appointed by Full Council (in line with the 
Constitution) but sets out that a Vice-Chair may be appointed by a majority 
decision of the Committee. 

 
 

4.0 Summary of main proposals 

4.1 For the Communities Scrutiny Commmittee to review its Terms of Reference 
attached at Appendix A to clarify the procedure for election of a Chair and Vice- 
Chair of the Committee. 

 
5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 There are no alternative options arising from this report. 
 
 
6.0 Key Risks 

6.1 There are no key risks arising from this report. 
 
 
7.0 Council Priorities 

7.1 A community-focussed, innovative council providing efficient, effective and quality 
services. 

 
 
8.0 Financial Implications 
 
8.1  There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
 
9.0 Legal and HR Implications 
 
9.1 The Council’s Constitution sets out that the Chair of Committees shall be decided 
at the Annual meeting of Full Council. Accordingly, the terms of reference for the 
Committee should mirror these provisions. It is also prescient for the terms of reference 
to provide clarity on the election of a Vice-Chair for the Committee. Once the Committee 

Page 10



Appendix A 

 

3 

 

has confirmed its terms of reference, the Monitoring Officer will update the Consitution to 
ensure consistency of the terms of reference of the Committee.  
10.0 Ward Implications 
 
10.1  There are no ward implications arising from this report. 
 
 
11.0 Health, Social and Economic Implications 
 
11.1 There are no health, social and economic implications arising from this report. 
  
 
12.0 Equality and Diversity Implications 
 
12.1 There are no equality and diversity implications arising from this report. 
 
 
13.0 Climate Change and Environmental Implications 
 
13.1 There are no climate change and environmental implications arising from this 

report. 
 
 
14.0  Background Papers 
  
14.1 Council Constitution. 
 
15.0  Appendices 
 

A Terms of Reference. Communities Scrutiny Committee 
  

16.0  Report Sign Off 
 
Signed off by Date sent Date signed off Initials  
Legal 13/06/2022 13/06/2022 RP 
XXX XX/XX/XXXX XX/XX/XXXX XX 
XXX XX/XX/XXXX XX/XX/XXXX XX 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE. 

Membership  

1. The Committee will be made up of elected members from the Scrutiny Assembly, 
appointed at Annual Council in line with the political balance of the Council, and 
co-opted scrutiny members.   
 

2. The number of co-opted members must not exceed 50% of the number of elected 
members.  

 
3. In addition to standing co-optees, the Committee may appoint additional co-optees 

for one-off reviews to supplement the skills, knowledge and experience of 
members of the Committee on that particular issue (subject to the rule on total 
number of co-optees above)..  

 
4. The Chair is appointed at the Annual General Meeting of full Council. A Vice-Chair 

may be appointed by majority decision of the Committee. 
 

5. The quorum for a meeting is three elected members. 
 

Functions  

6. The Committee will be the main mechanism by which Scrutiny members will 
scrutinise and monitor issues relating to the following key areas:   

 
 Customer Experience  
 Voluntary sector and community groups 
 Community engagement and development 
 Community hubs and centres 
 Library services and archives 
 Heritage Services 
 Preventing and reducing crime 
 Tackling domestic abuse 
 Reducing anti-social behaviour  
 Fire and rescue and emergency response 
 Public Protection  
 Enforcement 
 Civil resilience and emergency planning 
 Road safety 
 Registration, celebratory and coroner's services 
 Benefits and welfare reform 
 Sport, leisure, entertainment and culture facilities 
 Diversity and Equality 
 Armed Services and Veterans 
 Interfaith Issues 
 Housing – including affordable housing, HMOs, homelessness and housing 

needs 
 

Page 13



Appendix 1 

7. The Community Scrutiny Committee will be the designated body for scrutiny of the 
Safer, Stronger Communities Partnership as set out in section 19 of the Police & 
Justice Act (2006). The work programme will make provision for scrutiny of this 
item.  

 

8. The Committee will consider matters referred by the Scrutiny Management Board, 
and will exercise discretion as to whether a suggestion falls within the remit of the 
Committee to scrutinise.  

 

9. The Committee will set its own work programme in accordance with the areas set 
out above and may look at any issue deemed by the Committee to fall within its 
remit.   

 

Meeting Administration and Proceedings 

10. The Committee procedure rules as set out in the Council’s Constitution apply to 
this Committee. 
 

11. The meetings will follow the principles of scrutiny ie no party whip will be applied 
and a constructive, evidence based approach will be used. 

 
12. If the Chair or Vice-Chair (if appointed) are unable to attend a meeting the Members 

present will elect a Chair for the meeting.  
 
13. All Scrutiny Committee meetings will be held in public, unless exempt information 

is being considered or discussed. Scrutiny Committees may appoint sub-groups to 
carry out investigative work as part of a review and these sub-groups may hold 
informal meetings but will report back their findings to the Scrutiny Committee. 

 

14. The meetings will be administered by Scrutiny Services and Democratic Services.  
Frequency of meetings will be agreed by the Committee as necessary to carry out 
the work programme.    

 
15. Relevant Cabinet Members, Executive Directors, Directors and Service Delivery 

Managers will attend the Committee at the request of the Chair. Representatives 
from other organisations may be invited to attend.  

 

Sensitive and Confidential Information  

16. From time to time members may become privy to information of a confidential 
nature.  If this happens, members must maintain this confidence.  Members are 
unable to request personal/confidential information from Officers about an 
individual or family. 

 

Reporting Arrangements 

Page 14



Appendix 1 

17. The Chair will provide regular updates to meetings of the Scrutiny Management 
Board to inform the other Scrutiny Chairs of performance and budget issues 
relating to the remit of their Committees. 
 

The Chair of the Committee, or his/her representative, will provide and present 

reports and recommendations of the Committee to the Council’s Cabinet, Fully 

Council or other relevant organisations when necessary. 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Communities Scrutiny Work Programme 2022/2023 
Yellow = New Suggestions 

 

Communities     

Issue / Topic Brief description of topic Suggested by Service area Proposed date 

Safer Stronger 
Communities  

An update on Safer Stronger 
Communities initiative. 

Rolled over Neighbourhood & 
Enforcement Services 

Autumn/Winter 2022 – 
Committee item 

Transport Strategies 
including the Corporate 
Travel Plan 

An update on the Council’s 
transport strategies and 
corporate travel plan. 

Rolled over Neighbourhood & 
Enforcement Services 

Spring 2023 – 
Committee item 

Highways Update Maintenance of the Borough’s 
highways.  

New – SMT Neighbourhood & 
Enforcement Services 

June 2022 – Committee 
item 

Contract review Review of large contracts 
delivering services for the 
authority  

New – Cabinet 
and SMT 

Multiple Spring 2023 - 
Workshop 

Review of partnership 
working with Town and 
Parish Councils 

Review of impact of joint 
initiatives entered into with TPCs 
and what impact this has had on 
communities 

New – Cabinet 
and SMT 

Communities, 
Customer & 
Commercial Services  
and Policy & 
Governance  

Winter 2022 - workshop 

Road safety and traffic Update on road safety work 
undertaken.  

New – SMT Neighbourhood & 
Enforcement Services 

Potential to be 
incorporated into 
highways item 

Trading Standards Update on the measures taken 
by Trading Standards to protect 
consumers and the regulatory 
powers available 

New – SMT Neighbourhood & 
Enforcement Services 

Summer/Autumn 2022 
– Committee item 

Transport Strategies - 
Active Travel and EV 

To review updated position in 
relation to both strategies  

New – SMT Neighbourhood & 
Enforcement Services 

2023/24 municipal year. 

 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Terms of Reference 2022/2023
	COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

	5 Work Programme 2022/2023

